
Grid reference SO 814 454

Approximate distance 2 miles 

(4 kilometres)

Begin the Walk in Rectory Lane beside St. Mary’s Church, built in 1845. (Visit the Churchyard, particularly beautiful in Spring, and look for the Church Bell in a hornbeam tree, placed there as a “temporary measure” in 1906. Outside the further gate is the War Memorial, where there was also once a ford.) 

Return to Rectory Lane to continue the Walk.

Next to the Church once stood the Guarlford National School and School House. The original red brick playground wall can still be seen to the left of the modern houses on the site.

Walk past the next house, Innisfree, and past steps to a door into what was known as The Rectory Room, once used as a Village Hall. 

Proceed past The Old Rectory and walk on down the lane and past Cherry Orchard; across the Glebe Field on the right can be seen New House Farm.

Continue along the lane, passing the wooden footbridge (which leads to footpaths across fields to Blackmore Park). In the field to the right you will see an old red brick building, the World War Two Radio Listening Post.
At the junction go left, past Woodbridge Farm, following the bridle path skirting the large farm buildings, to Wood Street, the ancient saltway, a link from the Rhydd and Clevelode river crossings to the Wyche on the Malvern Hills. 

(Please note - from this point the route is steep in parts and can become rather muddy after rain.) 

At the top of the hill a stile and footpath on the left lead to Hanley Swan, and the path straight on leads through a bluebell wood towards Poolbrook.

For this Walk take the path to the right and climb over the stile. Go down the steep path and over the stream via the wooden bridge. Bear slightly right. Follow the footpath signs to the field stile and across to The Green Dragon. 

Walk back towards Guarlford along the common, part of the original “Barnard’s Green”.

 Walk past the pollarded black poplar in front of number 170. The “Welcome to Malvern” sign marks the boundary of Guarlford Civil Parish. 

Turn right into Rectory Lane. At the field gate on the right is a good view across fields to the range of the Malvern Hills. 

Go past Jasmine Cottage and follow the road round the bend to the left and retrace your steps to the Church. 

Complete your walk by going on past the church gate towards the attractive red telephone box on the small green. 

Turn and look at the Church wall – note the Victorian Post Box and the tablets describing commemorative trees planted in the parish. 

Also on the green is the Village Sign, incorporating the Parish Council’s Black Pear logo. Opposite lies the pond, which underwent extensive restoration in 2002, and the award-winning Grange Farm Nursery. 

(At the Nursery may be purchased the two village history books: “The Guarlford Story” and “The Guarlford Scene”.) 
Guarlford Church & back via Wood Street.











